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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A, AS AMENDED

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended
Dec 31, 2016

2. SEC Identification Number
22401

3. BIR Tax Identification No.
000-491-007

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter
PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

5. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES

6. Industry Classification Code(SEC Use Only)

7. Address of principal office

16F Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
Postal Code
1226

8. Issuer's telephone number, including area code
(632) 831-4479

9. Former name or former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report
#3 SAN ANTONIO ST., BO KAPITOLYO PASIG CITY
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Annual Report
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
common 700,298,616
preferred 14,366,260

11. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes No
If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange
12. Check whether the issuer:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141
of The Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes No

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days
Yes No

13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant. The
aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock was sold, or the
average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to the
date of filing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be made
without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of the common stock
held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasonable under the
circumstances, provided the assumptions are set forth in this Form

118,156,895.12

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN
INSOLVENCY SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS
DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS

14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17 of
the Code subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the
Commission.

Yes No

http://edge.pse.com.ph/openDiscViewer.do?edge_no=183d2eee4724baeb3318251c9257320d#sthash.Mktg30PK.dpbs
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

15. If any of the following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe them and identify
the part of SEC Form 17-A into which the document is incorporated:

(a) Any annual report to security holders

(b) Any information statement filed pursuant to SRC Rule 20

(c) Any prospectus filed pursuant to SRC Rule 8.1

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange, and
are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to the

Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

Prime Media Holdings, Inc.
PRIM

PSE Disclosure Form 17-1 - Annual Report
References: SRC Rule 17 and
Sections 17.2 and 17.8 of the Revised Disclosure Rules
35
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For the fiscal year ended Dec 31, 2016

Currency (indicate units, PHP

if applicable)

Balance Sheet

Current Assets
Total Assets
Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Retained
Earnings/(Deficit)

Stockholders' Equity

Stockholders' Equity - Parent

Book Value per Share

Income Statement

Operating Revenue
Other Revenue
Gross Revenue
Operating Expense
Other Expense

Gross Expense

Net Income/(Loss) Before Tax

Income Tax Expense

Net Income/(Loss) After Tax

Net Income/(Loss) Attributable to Parent

Equity Holder

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (Basic)
Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (Diluted)

Financial Ratios

Formula

Year Ending
Dec 31, 2016
48,027,135
116,459,335
193,160,882
202,195,382

-2,915,362,792
-85,736,047

-0.12

Year Ending
Dec 31, 2016
2,973,625
2,973,625
28,653,740
28,653,740
-25,680,115
590,871
-26,270,986

-0.04
-0.04

Fiscal Year Ended

Annual Report

Previous Year Ending
Dec 31, 2015
78,439,864
144,998,224
195,989,085
204,453,285

-2,889,091,806
-59,455,061

-0.09

Previous Year Ending
Dec 31, 2015
2,011,824

2,011,824
32,674,375
32,674,375
-30,662,551

36,060

-30,698,611

-0.06
-0.06

Previous Fiscal Year

http://edge.pse.com.ph/openDiscViewer.do?edge_no=183d2eee4724baeb3318251c9257320d#sthash.Mktg30PK.dpbs
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Liquidity Analysis Ratios:

Current Ratio or
Working Capital Ratio

Quick Ratio

Solvency Ratio
Financial Leverage Ratios
Debt Ratio

Debt-to-Equity Ratio
Interest Coverage
Asset to Equity Ratio
Profitability Ratios
Gross Profit Margin

Net Profit Margin

Return on Assets

Return on Equity

Price/Earnings Ratio

Other Relevant Information

none

Filed on behalf by:
Name
Designation

Annual Report

Dec 31, 2016
Current Assets / Current
Liabilities 0.25
(Current Assets - Inventory -
Prepayments) / Current 0.25
Liabilities

Total Assets / Total Liabilities -0.13

Total Debt/Total Assets 1.73
Total Debt/Total Stockholders' 235
Equity :

Earnings Before Interestand  _
Taxes (EBIT) / Interest Charges

Total Assets / Total 1.36
Stockholders' Equity )

Sales - Cost of Goods Sold or
Cost of Service / Sales

—

Net Profit / Sales -8.87
Net Income / Total Assets -0.23
Net Income / Total 0.31

Stockholders' Equity

Price Per Share / Earnings Per
Common Share -28.25

Joanna Manzano
Junior Compliance Officer

http://edge.pse.com.ph/openDiscViewer.do?edge_no=183d2eee4724baeb3318251c9257320d#sthash.Mktg30PK.dpbs

Dec 31, 2015

0.4

0.4

-0.16

1.41
3.43

2.44

-156.2
-0.21

0.39

-29.3
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COVER SHEET

for
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEC Registration Number
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Form Type

Department requiring the report

C/IR/MD

Secondary License

Type, If Applicable

N

/

A

COMPANY INFORMATION

Company's Email Address

Company’s Telephone Number/s

Mobile Number

service@primemediaholdingsinc.com (02) 889-9009

No. of Stockholders

_Annual Meeting (Month / Day)

Fiscal Year {(Month / Day)

1,875

3" Tuesday of May

December 31

__ CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION

Name of Contact Person

Th';a"designated contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation

Email Address

Telephone Number/s

Mobile Number

Mr. Rolando S. Santos

rolly.santos@marcventures.com.ph

826-8609/856-7976

09989850229

OFFICE ADDRESS

16th Floor, Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

NOTE 1: In case of death, resignation or cessation of office of the officer designated as contact person, such incident shall be reported to the Commission within
thirty (30) calendar days from the occurrence thereof with information and complete contact details of the new contact person designated.

2: All Boxes must be properly and completely filled-up. Failure to do so shall cause the delay in updating the corporation’s records with the Commission
and/or non-receipt of Notice of Deficiencies. Further, non-receipt shall not excuse the corporation from liability for its deficiencies.




STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Management of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein for
the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible in overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members.

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for the
years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, has audited the financial statements of
the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the
stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit.

Signature

ANOLITO A. MANALO
Chairman and President

Signature :(E; :

ROLANDO S. SANTOS
Tredsurer

Signed this_ ! day of  April %13
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SUB ND SWORN to before me this
J‘tf , affiant(s) exhibiting to me their Passport as follows:
Name Passport Number Date/Place Issued
Rolando S. Santos Senior Citizen#1003235 March 2010/Antipolo
Manolito A. Manalo TIN # 195-562-309
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Practitioner’s Compiiation Report

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors

PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)
16th Floor Citibank Tower, 8741

Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

[ have compiled the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.) (or the Company) based on information
you have provided. These financial statements comprise the statement of financial position
of the Company as at December 31, 2016, the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash fiows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

I performed this compilation engagement in accordance with Philippine Standard on Related
Services 4410 (Revised), Compilation Engagements.

| have applied my expertise in accounting and financial reporting to assist you in the
preparation and presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). | have complied with relevant ethical requirements,
including principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care.

These financial statements and the accuracy and completeness of the information used to
compile them are your responsibility.

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, | am not required to
verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you provided to us to compile these
financial statements. Accordingly, | do not express an audit opinion or a review conclusion
on whether these financial statements are prepared in accordance with PFRS.

CFA Cert
BOA A.N.: 8825
Valid Until December 31, 2017

BIR Accreditation No.: 06-006384-001-2016 -
Valid Until March 7, 2019

TIN No. 309-973-133-000

PTR No. 6016643 issued January 10, 2017

City of Manila

April 10, 2017

APR 2L 20T
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BOA/PRC Accreditation No. 4782 Citibank Tower
December 29, 2015, valid until December 31, 2018 8741 Paseo de Roxas

. ! y J
| I) () N ( N & ( ) SEC Accreditation No, 0207-FR-2 (Group &) | Makati City 1226 Philippines
. a . — Phone 4632 982 9100

E - . i - September 27, 2016, valid until September 27, 2019
FIRM PRINCIPLES. WISE SOLUTIONS. Fax : +632 982 9111

Website : www.reyestacandong.com

THE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD

AUBIT J TAX FCONSULTING

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc.

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company),
a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., which comprise the statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Stockholders’ Commitment to Support the Company

financial statements

APR 2 1 2014

RSM

Reyes Tacandong & Co. is a member of the RSM network. Each member of the RSM network is an independent accounting and consulting firm, and practices in its own right. The RSM network is
not itself a separate legal entity of any description in any jurisdiction.

T



REvEs TACANDONG & Co.
FIRM PRINCIPI ES. WISt SO TONS,

Estimated Liabilities
=>Mated Liabilities

As discussed in Note 1, the Company has estimated liabilities primarily related to its Previous development
banking operations. This matter is of significance to our audit because it involves the use of estimates.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-Is (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A (Annual Report) and

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

appears to be materially misstated.

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A O O



REYEs TAcanpone & Co.

FIRM PRINCIPLES, WISE SOLUTIONS,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

IO
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el FIRM PRINCIPLES. WISE SOLUTIONS,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Belinda B. Fernando.

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

BELINDA B. FERNANDO

Partner
CPA Certificate No. 81207
Tax Identification No. 102-086-538-000
BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1022-AR-1 Group A
Valid until March 15, 2020
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005144-4-2017
Valid until January 13, 2020
PTR No. 5908526
Issued January 3, 2017, Makati City

April 10, 2017
Makati City, Metro Manila

APR 2 1 2017
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. bt oo
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management (Z{rar[gfif;£~J Gniies L omens oroston
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITI N:f_ I

: l APR 2/ 1 2017 J]®
o | L
BY A ~
L onM D Cpurente O
December31 | January T,
2015 2015
(As restated -  (As restated —
Note 2016 Note 17) Note 17)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 4 R2,701,963 R73,225,018 PR110,053,912
Receivables 5 4,516,267 4,384,867 4,650,121
Due from Parent Company 13 40,000,000 - -
Other current assets 808,905 829,979 797,115
Total Current Assets 48,027,135 78,439,864 115,501,148
Noncurrent Assets
Investment properties 6 68,135,000 66,234,000 66,234,000
Available-for-sale (AFS) financial asset 7 240,000 250,000 150,000
Computer equipment 8 57,200 74,360 =
Total Noncurrent Assets 68,432,200 66,558,360 66,384,000

RP116,459,335 R144,998,224 £181,885,148

LIABILITY AND CAPITAL DEFICIENCY

Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 9 R193,160,882 PR195,989,085 £8202,277,398

Noncurrent Liability
Deferred tax liability 12 9,034,500 8,464,200 8,464,200
202,195,382 204,453,285 210,741,598

Capital Deficiency
Capital stock ;
Additional paid-in capital :

/14,664,876 747,489,906 747,489,906
‘ i»w-si—i:’;gs? 2,082,096,839 2,082,096,839

Deficit Wi e, R 92) (2,889,091,806)(2,858,393,195)

Cumulative unrealized gain on AFS financial =~ - j
assets 7 s 40,000 50,000 (50,000)
Total Capital Deficiency (85,736,647) (59,455,061) (28,856,450)

R116,459,335 R144,998,224 R181,885,148

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Note 2016 2015 2014
INCOME
Gain on fair value changes of investment
properties 6 1,901,000 B- B-
Recovery of accounts written-off 5 749,211 583,281 1,911,160
Rental 11 279,360 1,219,730 2,008,116
Interest income 4 44,054 208,813 132,877
2,973,625 2,011,824 4,052,153
EXPENSES
Management fee 13 23,092,784 23,092,784 -
Professional fees 2,907,299 2,514,319 455,501
Outside services 1,093,483 2,086,595 1,612,791
Taxes and licenses 654,931 1,566,413 1,363,706
Rent 11 272,783 1,246,714 627,991
Salaries and allowance 130,998 199,466 -
Depreciation 8 17,160 11,440 =
Penalties - 274,200 800,000
Others 484,302 1,682,444 378,862
28,653,740 32,674,375 5,238,851
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (25,680,115) (30,662,551) (1,186,698)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 12
Current 20,571 36,060 78,386
Deferred 570,300 - =
590,871 36,060 78,386
NET LOSS (26,270,986) (30,698,611) (1,265,084)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Item that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes of
AFS financial assets 7 (10,000) 100,000 (30,000)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (P26,280,986) (R30,598,611) (1,295,084)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share | s (R0.04)-"= ] (R0.06) (R0.01)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

2015 2015
(As restated — (As restated —
Note 2016 Note 17) Note 17)
CAPITAL STOCK 10
Common stock - R1 par value
Subscribed:
Balance at beginning of year R698,930,906 P698,930,906 R458,746,136
Conversion of debt to equity = - 240,184,770
Conversion of preferred to common stock 1,367,710 = -
Balance at end of year 700,298,616 698,930,906 698,930,906
Less subscription receivable:
Balance at beginning of year - - 1,600,000
Movement during the year - - (1,600,000)
Balance at end of year - - -
700,298,616 698,930,906 698,930,906
Preferred stock - R1 par value
Balance at beginning of year 48,559,000 48,559,000 48,559,000
Conversion of preferred to common stock (34,192,740) - -
Balance at end of year 14,366,260 48,559,000 48,559,000
714,664,876 747,489,906 747,489,906
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year 2,082,096,839 2,082,096,839 1,614,419,684
Conversion of preferred to common stock 32,825,030 - -
Conversion of debt to equity = - 360,277,155
Subscription payment in excess of par - - 107,400,000
Balance at end of year 2,114,921,869 2,082,096,839 2,082,096,839
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year, as previously
reported (2,908,841,606) (2,878,142,995) (2,876,877,911)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting policy 17 19,749,800 19,749,800 19,749,800
Balance at beginning of year, as restated (2,889,091,806) (2,858,393,195) (2,857,128,111)
Net loss (26,270,986) (30,698,611) (1,265,084)
Balance at end of year (2,915,362,792) (2,889,091,806) (2,858,393,195)
CUMULATIVE UNREALIZED GAIN (LOSS) ON
AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS 7 : |
Balance at beginning of year 50,000 _ (50,000) (20,000)
Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes (10,000) - 1. 100,000 (30,000}
Balance at end of year 40,000 -2 50,000, (50,000)
(R85,736,047) ! Eia59§2i55;961) (R28,856,450)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2016 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax (R25,680,115) (R30,662,551) (R1,186,698)
Adjustments for:
Gain on change in fair value of investment
property (1,901,000) - -
Interest income 4 (44,054) (208,813) (132,877)
Depreciation 8 17,160 11,440 -
Operating loss before working capital changes (27,608,009) (30,859,924) (1,319,575)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (131,400) 265,254 (246,377)
Due from Parent Company (40,000,000) - -
Other current assets 21,074 (32,864) 166,237
Increase (decrease) in:
Decrease in accrued expenses and other
current liabilities (2,828,203) (6,288,313) (834,429)
Net cash used for operations (70,546,538) (36,915,847) (2,234,144)
Interest received 44,054 208,813 132,877
Income tax paid (20,571) (36,060) (119,800)
Net cash used in operating activities (70,523,055) (36,743,094) (2,221,067)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of computer equipment 8 - (85,800) -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of common stock 10 - - 109,000,000
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (70,523,055)  (36,828,894) 106,778,933
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 73,225,018 110,053,912 3,274,979
CASH AT END OF YEAR P2,701,963 B73,225,018 R110,053,912

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1963. On October 1, 2003, the SEC
approved the amendment of the Company’s articles of incorporation, changing its primary purpose
from a development bank to a holding company and to hold investments in the media industry. On
March 4, 2013, the SEC approved the extension of the Company’s corporate life for another 50
years.

On July 9, 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. approved the public listing of the Company’s
shares of stock. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 663,713,458 Company shares are publicly
listed.

On September 12, 2002, the Company’s assets and liabilities arising from its development bank
operations were transferred to and assumed by Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. (BDO) and Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC) under a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA). As at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has liabilities arising from the MOA which pertain
mainly to the estimated transfer taxes and registration fees related to the transfer of assets to
BDO/PDIC and other related liabilities (see Note 9).

As at December 31, 2015, the Company’s shareholders are RYM Business Management Corp. (RYM
or Parent Company) (43%), Metro Tagaytay Land Company, Inc. (MTLCI) (31%) and Neo Oracle
Holdings, Inc. (NOHI) (13%). In 2016, RYM acquired the common stock owned by MTLCI and NOHI
but disposed of 21% of its ownership shares. As at December 31, 2016, RYM effectively owns 66% of
the Company’s common stock.

The financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board
of Directors (BOD) on April 10, 2017.

Status of Operations

The Company is still exploring for a new business. Its current activities comprise mainly of
transferring assets related to its previous development bank operation to BDO and PDIC. Thus, the
Company has continued to incur losses resulting to a capital deficiency of R85.7 million and
£59.5 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The stockholders, however, have
continued to provide the necessary financial support to sustain Company operations. The
stockholders converted their preferred stock of B34.2 million into common stock in 2016 and
converted their advances of 2600.5 million to additional capital in 2014 and infused capital
aggregating R179.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce the capital deficiency. The Company is also
considering to implement a quasi-reorganization to reduce the capital-deficiency.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the PFRS. This financial reporting
framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations from
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee issued by the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the SEC, including SEC pronouncements.

Measurement Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All values represent absolute amounts except otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for its investment
properties and AFS financial assets which are carried at fair value. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for an asset.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the transaction date. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.

The Company uses market observable data to a possible extent when measuring the fair value of an
asset or a liability. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

e level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in Note 16,
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies.



Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016:

e Amendments to PAS1, Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure Initiative — The
amendments clarify guidance on materiality and aggregation, the presentation of subtotals, the
structure of financial statements and the disclosure of accounting policies.

e Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Amortization — The amendments add guidance and clarify that (i) the use of revenue-based
methods to calculate the depreciation of an asset is not appropriate because revenue generated
by an activity that includes the use of an asset generally reflects factors other than the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied in the asset, and (ii) revenue is generally
presumed to be an inappropriate basis for measuring the consumption of the economic benefits
embodied in an intangible asset; however, this presumption can be rebutted in certain limited
circumstances.

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial statements of the Company. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to
financial statements, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS Not Yet Adopted
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2016
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements are summarized below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017

e Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative — The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from their financing activities.

e Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses — The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets related to unrealized
losses on debt instruments measured at fair value, to address diversity in practice.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018

e PFRS 9, Financial Instruments — This standard will replace PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (and all the previous versions of PFRS9). It contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities,
impairment, hedge accounting and derecognition.

PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on their
classification by reference to the business model within which they are held and their
contractual cash flow characteristics.



For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an
accounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expected credit loss” model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract. It will no longer be
necessary for there to be objective evidence of impairment before a credit loss is recognized.

For hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financial risk exposures.

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

e PFRS 16, Leases — Significant change introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will
be brought onto lessees’ statements of financial position under a single model (except leases of
less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between
operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the
distinction between operating and finance lease is retained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company. Additional
disclosures will be included in the financial statements, as applicable.

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statements of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provision of a financial instrument.
Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. In the case of regular way purchase or sale
of financial asset, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using trade date accounting.

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized initially at
fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case
of a liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair
value through profit and loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost.

Classification of Financial Instruments. The Company classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition under the following categories: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b) held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments, (c) loans and receivables and (d) AFS financial assets. Financial liabilities, on the other
hand, are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities at amortized cost.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired or
incurred and whether or not the instruments are quoted in an active market.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company does not have financial assets and liabilities at
FVPL and HTM investments.



AFS Financial Assets. AFS financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. These are purchased and
held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets is subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognized as other comprehensive income and the accumulated balance is included
in “Cumulative unrealized gain (loss) on AFS financial assets” within equity. These changes in fair
value are recognized in equity until the investment is sold, collected, or otherwise disposed of or
until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

The Company classified its proprietary membership shares as AFS financial assets as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015.

“Day 1” Differences. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in the statement of
comprehensive income. In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Company
deemed the transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 1” difference in
profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1”
difference.

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities and that are not quoted in an active market. These are not entered
into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified or designated as AFS
financial assets or financial asset at FVPL. Loans and receivables are included in current assets if
maturity is within twelve months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
assets.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and any transaction cost which are
directly attributable in the acquisition of the financial instrument. The amortization is included in
profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, this category includes cash in banks, receivables (excluding
advances to officers, employees and service providers) and due from Parent Company.

Other Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are classified in this category if
these are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These
include liabilities arising from operations or through borrowing.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any related issue
costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized, as well as when there is amortization process.



As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, this category includes accrued expenses and other current
liabilities (excluding statutory payables).

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized by the Company when:

e the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or

e the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

e the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has transferred control over
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset, if any, is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognized in profit or loss.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original
liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying amount of the original liability and
fair value of the new liability is recognized in the separate statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received in the restructuring.



Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements where the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

The carrying amount of the impaired account is reduced to the extent that it exceeds the asset’s net
realizable value. Impairment losses are recognized in full in profit or loss. If in a subsequent period, the
amount of accumulated impairment losses has decreased because of an event occurring after
impairment was recognized, the decline is allowed to be reversed to profit or loss to the extent that the
resulting carrying amount will not exceed the amortized cost determined had no impairment been
recognized.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If itis
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment.
Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtor’s ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. Time value is
generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. The carrying amount of the
asset shall be reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of loss shall
be recognized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its amortized cost at the reversal date.



AFS Financial Assets. For equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below their cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognized in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognized in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through income. Increases in fair value
after impairment are recognized directly in the other comprehensive income and presented in the
statements of changes in equity.

Other Current Assets
Other current assets include creditable withholding taxes (CWT) and prepayments.

CWT. CWT are amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWT can be
utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by certificates of
creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation.

Prepayments. Prepayments represent expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before
these are utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and
charged to profit or loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realized for no more
than twelve months after the reporting date are classified as other current assets. Otherwise, these
are classified as other noncurrent assets.

Investment Properties
Investment properties, accounted for under the fair value model, are property held either to earn

rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investment properties are measured initially at acquisition cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequently, investment properties are stated at fair value as determined by independent
appraisers. The carrying amounts recognized in the statements of financial position reflect the
prevailing market conditions at the end of each reporting period.

Any gain or loss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale of an investment property
is immediately recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

No depreciation charges are recognized on investment properties accounted for under the fair value
method.

Investment properties are derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party
or ending of construction or development.

Computer Equipment

Computer equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.



The initial cost of computer equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of the
computer equipment.

Expenditures incurred after the computer equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs,
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
computer equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as additional costs of computer equipment. The cost of replacing a component of an
item of computer equipment is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognized.

When parts of an item of computer equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of computer equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the
computer equipment of 5 years.

The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from computer equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any resulting gain or loss
is credited to or charged against current operations.

Impairment of Investment Properties and Computer Equipment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that investment
properties and computer equipment may be impaired when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists
and if the carrying amount exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, investment properties and
computer equipment are written down to its recoverable amount, which is the greater of fair value
less cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the
sale of an asset in an arm’s-length transaction. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are
recognized in profit or loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit or loss.
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Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated as deduction from equity, net of tax.

Additional Paid-in Capital (APIC). Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of
par value, if any, are recognized as APIC.

Deficit. Deficit represents the accumulated net income or loss, less any dividends declared.
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is recognized as follows:

Rental. Rental income is recognized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease.

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yield on the asset.

Recovery of Assets Written-off. Income from other sources is recognized when earned.
Expense Recognition

Expenses constitute cost of administering the business. These costs are expensed upon receipt of
goods, utilization of services, or when the expense is incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets, and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a. thereisa change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b. arenewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment is dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. thereis a substantial change to the asset.

Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b).

Operating Lease - Company as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating lease. Operating lease payments
are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Operating Lease - Company as a Lessor. Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks
and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized on a straight line basis over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Income Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate used to compute the amount is the one that
has been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of any unused tax credits
from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax
(RCIT) and any unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not
recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
. period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate that has been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss for the year attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common stock outstanding during the year, with
retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared or stock split.

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of common stock
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential common stock.

Where the loss per share effect of potential dilutive common stock would be anti-dilutive, basic and
diluted loss per share are stated at the same amount.
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Segment Reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from

which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the
transactions with any of the Company’s other components.

Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the notes

to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements when
material. Post year-end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial
statements when material.

Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

PFRS requires management to make judgments and estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements. The judgments and estimates used in the financial
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the
reporting date. While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may
materially affect the estimated amounts. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgments, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements.



-13-

Assessing the Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern. The Company has incurred
continuous losses resulting in a capital deficiency of B85.7 million, B59.5 million and #28.9 million as
at December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. Management believes this trend to continue
for the twelve months after reporting date. As discussed in Note 1, the stockholders, provide
continuing necessary financial support to the Company while new business opportunities are not yet
available. Based on this, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis of
accounting.

Classifying Financial Instruments. The Company classifies a financial instrument, or its component
parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather
than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of financial position.

The Company classified its proprietary membership shares as an AFS financial assets (see Note 7).

Accounting for Lease Commitments: Company as a Lessor. Management exercises judgment in
determining whether substantially all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the assets
held for lease are retained by the Company. ‘Lease contracts where the Company retains
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are accounted for
as operating leases. Otherwise, these are considered as finance leases.

The Company, as a lessor, has entered into property leases where it has determined that it retains
all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of those properties. As such, the lease agreements
are accounted for as operating leases.

Rent income amounted to R0.3 million, 1.2 million and B2.0 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively (see Note 11).

Accounting for Lease Commitments: Company as a Lessee. The Company, as a lessee, has an
operating lease agreement for its office space. The Company has determined that the risks and
benefits of ownership related to the leased properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the
lease is accounted for as an operating lease.

Rent expense amounted to R0.3 million, R1.2 million and R0.6 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively (see Note 11).

Evaluating Contingencies. The Company is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising from the
ordinary course of business. However, the Company’s management and legal counsel believe that
eventual liabilities under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material effect of the
Company’s financial statements.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimating Liabilities Related to Previous Development Bank Operations. The estimated liabilities
related to previous development bank operations of the Company is based on the management’s
best estimate of the amount expected to be incurred to settle the obligation.
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The liabilities arising from the MOA amounted to R171.1 million and BR172.0 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively (see Note 9).

Determining Fair Value of Investment Properties. The appraised value of the investment properties
were arrived at using the Market Data Approach. In this approach, the value of the land was based
on sales and listings of comparable property registered within the vicinity. This requires the
adjustments of comparable property by reducing reasonable comparative sales and listings to a
common denominator. This was done by adjusting the differences between the subject property
and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable. The properties used as bases of
comparison are situated within the vicinity of the subject property. The comparison was premised
on the factors of location, size, and shape of the lot, time element and others. Although this input is
subjective, management considers that the overall valuation would not be materially affected by
reasonable and possible alternative assumptions.

Fair market value is defined as the highest price in terms of money which a property will bring if
exposed for sale in the open market, allowing reasonable time to find a purchaser who buys with
knowledge of all the uses to which it is adapted and for which it is capable of being used.

The appraiser also considered the concept of value in use which is based on the highest and most
profitable continuous use or that which may reasonably be expected to produce the greatest net
return over a given period of time.

Gain on fair value changes recognized in the statements of comprehensive income amounted to
R1.9 million in December 31, 2016. Carrying value of investment properties amounted to
268.1 million, B66.2 million and R66.2 million in December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively
(see Note 6).

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables. The Company maintains allowance for
receivable impairment at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible
receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that
affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of
the Company’s relationship with the debtor, the debtor’s payment behaviour and known market
factors. The Company identifies and provides for specific accounts that are doubtful of collection
and reviews the age and status of the remaining receivables and establishes a provision considering,
among others, historical collection and write-off experience.

No impairment losses of receivables was recognized in 2016, 2015 and 2014. Allowance for
impairment loss amounted P60.3 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015. The carrying amount
of receivables amounted to R4.4 million and R4.4 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 5).

Assessing Impairment of Investment Properties and Computer Equipment. The Company assesses
impairment on investment properties and computer equipment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The factors
that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment review include the
following:

e significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;

e significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business;
or
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e significant negative industry or economic trends.
No impairment loss was recognized in 2016, 2015 and 2014,

The carrying amount of the Company’s investment properties and computer equipment are as
follows:

Note 2016 2015
Investment properties 6 R68,135,000 R66,234,000
Computer equipment 8 57,200 74,360

R68,192,200 266,308,360

Assessing Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. The Company treats AFS financial assets as impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where
other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or
“prolonged” requires judgment. The Company treats “significant” generally as 20% or more and
“prolonged” as greater than 12 months for quoted equity securities. In addition, the Company
evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted instruments and the
future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted instruments.

No impairment loss was recognized in 2016, 2015 and 2014. The carrying value of AFS financial
assets amounted to R0.2 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (see Note 7).

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews its deferred tax asset at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The Company’s unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to R36.2 million and 227.9 million as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Management believes that there will be no sufficient
future taxable profits against which deferred tax assets can be utilized (see Note 12).

Cash

This account consists of:

December 31 January 1,

2016 2015 2015

Cash on hand R5,277 B5,277 25,000
Cash in banks 2,696,686 73,219,741 110,048,912
R2,701,963 B73,225,018 £110,053,912

Cash in banks earn interest at bank deposit rates. Interest income from cash in banks amounted to
244,054, 208,813 million, 132,877 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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5. Receivables

This account consists of:

December 31 January 1,

Note 2016 2015 2015
Loans receivable R62,277,740 R62,277,740 R62,277,740

Advances to officers, employees
and service providers 2,134,335 2,122,935 2,125,503
Rent receivable 11 381,932 261,932 524,618
64,794,007 64,662,607 64,927,861

Less allowance for impairment

losses 60,277,740 60,277,740 60,277,740
R4,516,267 R4,384,867 R4,650,121

Loans receivable are related to the Company’s previous bank operations. The unimpaired balance of
loans receivable amounting to R2.0 million is left under an escrow fund as at December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014.

Advances to officers, employees and service providers represent unliquidated, noninterest-bearing
advances for processing of the transfer of title of properties to PDIC and BDO. These are liquidated
upon the accomplishment of the purposes for which the advances were granted.

The Company collected accounts previously written-off amounting to 0.7 million, R0.6 million and
R1.9 million in 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively.

6. Investment Properties

This account represents parcels of commercial land located in Legazpi City, Albay, which are held for
capital appreciation.

On December 31, 2016, the Company changed its measurement basis on investment properties
from cost model to fair value model (see Note 17).

Fair Value Measurement

Investment properties are revalued periodically at fair values as determined by an independent firm
of appraisers. The latest appraisal report is at April 3, 2017. The fair value of the land amounted to
£68.1 million as at December 31, 2016 and R66.2 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The fair value was determined based on valuation performed by independent and
professionally qualified appraisers with a report dated April 3, 2017. The fair value measurement for
investment properties has been categorized as level 3 (significant unobservable inputs).
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The composition of investment properties follows:

December 31 January 1

2015 2015

(As restated -  (As restated -

2016 see Note 17) see Note 17)

Cost R38,020,000 238,020,000 238,020,000
Cumulative gain on fair value changes:

Balance at beginning of year 28,214,000 28,214,000 —

Fair value change 1,901,000 - 28,214,000

Balance at end of year 30,115,000 28,214,000 28,214,000

R68,135,000  B66,234,000  P66,234,000

The appraised value of the investment properties-were arrived at using the Market Data Approach.
In this approach, the value of the land was based on sales and listings of comparable property
registered within the vicinity. This requires the adjustments of comparable property by reducing
reasonable comparative sales and listings to a common denominator. This was done by adjusting
the differences between the subject property and those actual sales and listings regarded as
comparable. The properties used as bases of comparison are situated within the vicinity of the
subject property. The comparison was premised on the factors of location, size, and shape of the
lot, time element and others.

The significant unobservable inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Price per square meter: estimated value prevailing in the real estate market depending on the
location, area, shape and time element. The price per square meter used for valuation ranges from
P15,000 to R48,246 and from R35,000 to R40,000 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Value adjustments: adjustments are made to bring the comparative values in approximation to the
Investment property taking into account the location and size. Value adjustment used is
30%-40% and 5%-10% as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Average price index was arrived at 235,000 to P37,000 per sq. m. and R34,000 to R36,000 as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

AFS Financial Assets

Movements of this account follow:

December 31 January 1,

2016 2015 2015

Cost R200,000 £200,000 R200,000

Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes

Balance at beginning of year 50,000 (50,000) (20,000)
Fair value change (10,000) 100,000 {(30,000)
Balance at end of year 40,000 50,000 (50,000)
R240,000 2250,000 2150,000
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8. Computer Equipment

Movements of this account follow:

2016 2015
Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year R85,800 P—
Additions - 85,800
Balance at end of year 85,800 85,800
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 11,440 -
Depreciation 17,160 11,440
Balance at end of year 28,600 11,440
Net Carrying Amount R57,200 £74,360
9. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
This account consists of:
December 31 January 1,
2016 2015 2015
Liabilities arising from the MOA R171,109,292 R171,959,972 R181,233,635
Dividends payable 10,985,443 10,985,443 10,985,443
Rental deposits 5,972,642 5,972,642 5,972,642
Accrued expenses 1,868,469 1,663,298 1,829,299
Others 3,225,036 5,407,730 2,256,379

R193,160,882 R195,989,085 R202,277,398

Liabilities arising from the MOA pertain to estimated transfer taxes and registration fees related to
the transfer of assets to BDO/PDIC and other related liabilities, primarily from unremitted collection
of assigned receivables and sale of foreclosed properties for the account of PDIC (see Note 1). This
account also includes provision for probable losses to cover estimated losses from claims. As
allowed under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, certain information is
not disclosed until final settlement as it might prejudice the Company’s position on the matter
(see Note 14).

Dividends payable pertains to the Company’s dividend for cumulative, nonparticipating, nonvoting,
redeemable and convertible preferred stock that were declared prior to the Company's incurrence
of deficit.

Rental deposits represent long-outstanding rental deposits that have not been claimed by the
Company’s previous tenants.

Accrued expenses pertain to accrual of outside services, professional fees and association dues,
among others. These will be settled in the next financial year.
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10. Equity

Capital Stock

The movement in capital stock are as follows:

2016 2015 2014
Number of Number of Number of
Stocks Amount Stocks Amount Stocks Amount
Common stock - R1 par value
Authorized 3,000,000,000 R3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 #3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000 R3,000,000,000
Subscribed:
Balance at beginning of year 698,930,906 698,930,906 698,930,906 698,930,906 458,746,136 458,746,136
Conversion of debt to equity - - - - 240,184,770 240,184,770
Conversion of preferred
to common 1,367,710 1,367,710 - - - -
Balance at end of year 700,298,616 700,298,616 698,930,906 698,930,906 698,930,906 698,930,906
Subscription receivable:
Balance at beginning of year - - - - - 1,600,000
Collections - - - - - (1,600,000)
Balance at end of year - - - - - -
700,298,616 R700,298,616 698,930,906 £698,930,906 698,930,906 R698,930,906
Preferred stock - #1 par value
Authorized 2,000,000,000 R2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 PR2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000 #2,000,000,000
Issued and outstanding:
Balance at beginning of year 48,559,000 48,559,000 48,559,000 48,559,000 48,559,000 48,559,000
Conversion of preferred
to common stock (34,192,740) (34,192,740) - . - -
Balance at end of year 14,366,260 14,366,260 48,559,000 48,559,000 48,559,000 48,559,000
714,664,876 R714,664,876 R747,489,906 R747,489,906 R747,489,906 R747,489,906

The Company has 1,875, 1,881 and 1,886 stockholders as at December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,

respectively.

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s issued and subscribed shares as at

December 31, 2016:

Number of shares

issued and Percentage of
subscribed shares
Non-public shareholdings:
a. Related parties 498,555,085 71.20%
b. Affiliates, directors and officers 97,179,807 14.00%
Public shareholdings 104,563,624 14.80%
Total 700,298,516 100.00%
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The high and low trading prices of the Company’s stock are as follows:

Quarter High Low
January 2016 to December 2016

First R1.47 R0.90
Second 1.84 1.25
Third 1.35 1.16
Fourth 1.54 1.13
January 2015 to December 2015

First 1.68 0.90
Second 1.84 1.30
Third 1.40 1.08
Fourth 1.67 1.10

The preferred stock has the following salient features:

a. Cumulative, nonparticipating, nonvoting, redeemable and convertible at the option of the
Company.

b. Cash dividend rate initially at 4.50% per annum based on par value, which shall be automatically
adjusted to 9.00% per annum upon full payment of the subscription price.

¢. The Company may, at any time at its option, wholly or partially redeem the outstanding
preferred stock plus accrued dividends thereon. When such call for redemption is made, the
holders of the preferred stock may opt to convert the preferred stock to common stock. The
minimum amount of redemption shall be equivalent to 2100.0 million and redemption in excess
of the minimum shall likewise be in multiples of R100.0 million. All redemptions shall be applied
in proportion to the outstanding preferred stock.

On October 10, 2001, the BOD approved an option to stockholders of preferred stock of extending
the maturity of stock for a 2% additional dividend on the 9% regular dividend.

In 2016, 34,192,740 preferred stock were converted to 1,367,710 common stock.

Debt to Equity Conversion and Additional Subscription
On April 6, 2013, the BOD approved the conversion of advances from NOHI and MTLCI aggregating

R600.5 million, into 240,184,770 common stock at 22,50 a share. On January 14, 2014, the SEC
approved the valuation for the Company’s debt to equity conversion.

On the same date, NOHI and MTLCI subscribed to additional 2179.0 million or 71,600,000 common
stock at £2.50 a share. The Company received the minimum subscription price amounting to
£70.0 million which was used by the Company to pay its loan with BDO. The remaining subscription
receivable amounting to £109.0 million was collected in 2014.

11. Leases

a. The Company entered into a cancellable lease agreement of a certain property for a period of 20
years that expired on August 31, 2015. The Company subleased the said property which
commenced on January 16, 2003 and consequently ended on August 31, 2015.
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Rental income amounted to R0.3 million, 21.2 million and £2.0 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Related rent expense amounted to R0.3 million, 1.2 million and R0.6 million in
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Rent receivable amounted to R0.4 million, 0.3 million and RO.5 million as at December 31,
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 5).

b. On April 1, 2015, the Company entered into a cancellable lease agreement with Bright Kindle
Resources & Investments, Inc. (BKR) for its office space. Rentals charged to expense amounted
to R0.9 million.

12. Income Tax
The provision for current income tax represents MCIT in 2016 and 2015.
The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets on the following temporary differences since the

management believes that it may not be probable that future taxable profit will be available to allow
utilization of the following tax benefits:

2016 2015
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables 218,083,322 R18,083,322
NOLCO 17,944,832 9,657,282
MCIT 135,017 114,446

R36,163,171 27,855,050

The Company’s deferred tax liability amounting to 9.0 million and B8.5 million as at December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively, pertains to cumulative gain on fair value changes of investment
properties.

As at December 31, 2016, unused NOLCO that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
income are as follows:

Year Incurred Expiry Date Amount Applied Expired Balance
2016 2019 R27,625,169 B- R— R27,625,169
2015 2018 30,871,364 - - 30,871,364
2014 2017 1,319,575 - = 1,319,575

B59,816,108 B- B— B59,816,108

As at December 31, 2016, unused MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
liability are as follows:

Year Incurred Expiry Date Amount Applied Expired Balance
2016 2019 R20,571 B- P- R20,571
2015 2018 36,060 - - 36,060
2014 2017 78,386 = - 78,386

135,017 P— p— 135,017
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The reconciliation of provision for income tax at the statutory income tax to the provision for income
tax shown in the statements of comprehensive income follows:

2016 2015 2014
Income tax computed at statutory tax rate (R7,704,035) (R9,198,765) (R356,009)
Movement in unrecognized deferred tax
assets 8,308,122 9,297,469 474,258
Tax effect of interest income already
subjected to final tax (13,216) (62,644) (39,863)
R590,871 236,060 B78,386

13.

Related Party Transactions
Outstanding balances and transaction with related parties are as follows:

Parent Company and Other Related Party

Nature of Amount of Transaction Outstanding Balance
Transaction 2016 2015 2016 2015
Parent Company -
Due from (to) Advances R40,000,000 (R22,475) #40,000,000 (R22,475)
Management fee 23,092,784 23,092,784 = -
40,000,000 (R22,475)
Under common control -
Bright Kindle Resources &
Investments, Inc. Rent expense R— R898,598 R— p—

Outstanding balances are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, payable on demand and settlement
occurs in cash.

The outstanding balance of due from Parent Company as at December 31, 2016 was subsequently
collected in January 2017.

On December 22, 2015, the Company entered into a management agreement with RYM to oversee
and supervise the Company’s business matters until December 31, 2017.

Key Management Personnel
There is no compensation for key management personnel.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

a. In the normal course of the Company's prior operations, there are outstanding commitments,
pending litigations and contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the financial statements.
The Company does not anticipate significant losses as a result of these transactions.

b. As discussed in Note 1, under the MOA dated September 12, 2002 between the Company and
BDO, the Company transferred its assets and liabilities from its development banking operations.
The Company agreed to hold BDO free from any contingent claims, labor and minority issues and
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concerns arising from related assets and liabilities still managed by the Company until these are
assumed by BDO. Further, the Company agreed to indemnify BDO against losses, claims and
damages BDO may suffer in the event such contingent claims, labor and minority issues affect
BDQ's rights under the MOA and the Deed of Assignment until the maturity of the deposits are
assumed by BDO (see Note 9).

c. The Company is a defendant in legal actions arising from normal business activities. Management
believes that these actions are without merit or that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from
these will not materially affect the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

15.

Loss Per Share

The basic and diluted loss per share were computed as follows:

2016 2015 2014
Net loss (R26,270,986) (R30,698,611) (R1,265,084)
Less dividend rights of the preferred stock for
the year 1,581,671 5,346,164 5,346,164
Loss attributable to common stockholders (27,852,657) (36,044,775) (6,611,248)
Divided by weighted average number
of common stock 699,728,737 569,020,585 569,020,585
Loss per share - basic and diluted (R0.04) {R0.06) (RO.01)

16.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash in banks, receivables (excluding
advances to officers, employees and service providers), due from Parent Company, AFS investment
and accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Company are credit risk and liquidity
risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing the risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from
cash in banks and receivables (excluding advances to officers, employees and service providers) and
due from Parent Company. The carrying amount of the financial assets represent the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The credit quality of the Company’s financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired are
considered to be of high grade and expected to be collectible without incurring any credit losses.
High grade financial assets are those financial assets from counterparties with good financial
condition and with relatively low defaults.



The aging analyses of financial assets as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

-24-

2016
Neither Past Past Due But Not Impaired
Due Nor Less Than Past Due and
Impaired 30 Days 31-60 Days Impaired Total
Due from Parent Company R40,000,000 R- B- R- R40,000,000
Cash in banks 2,696,686 - - - 2,696,686
Receivables* 2,381,932 - - 60,277,740 62,659,672
AFS financial assets 240,000 - - - 240,000
R45,318,618 B— Lo R62,277,740 R105,596,358
*Excluding advances to officers, employees and service providers.
2015
Neither Past Past Due But Not Impaired
Due Nor Less Than Past Due and
Impaired 30 Days 31-60 Days Impaired Total
Cash in banks R73,219,741 BR— R— R— R73,219,741
Receivables* 2,261,932 = = 60,277,740 62,539,672
AFS financial assets 250,000 = - - 250,000
R75,731,673 R~ R- B60,277,740  PB136,009,413

*Excluding advances to officers, employees and service providers.

Cash in banks are entered into with reputable financial institutions duly approved by the BOD.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain flexibility by maintaining sufficient cash to meet
all foreseeable cash needs.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at

December 31, 2016 and 2015 based on contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2016
Less than More than
On demand One year One year Total
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities* R193,154,189 R- R- P193,154,189
*Excluding statutory payables.
2015
Less than More than
On demand One year One year Total
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities* R192,837,989 B-—- B— R192,837,989
Due to a related party 22,475 - - 22,475
R192,860,464 B— BR— R192,860,464

*Excluding statutory payables.
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The table below presents a comparison by category of carrying amount and fair value of all of the
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Company’s financial assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets
Due from Parent Company R40,000,000 240,000,000 P— R—
Cash in banks 2,696,686 2,696,686 73,219,741 73,219,741
Receivables* 2,381,932 2,381,932 2,261,932 2,261,932
AFS financial assets 240,000 240,000 250,000 250,000
P45,318,618 ‘245,318,618 R75,731,673 B75,731,673
Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current
liabilities** R193,154,189 R193,154,189 PR192,837,989 R192,837,989
Due to a related party - - 22,475 22,475
R193,154,189 R193,154,189  P192,860,464  P192,860,464

*Excluding advances to officers, employees and service providers.
**Excluding statutory payables.

Current Financial Assets and Liabilities. The carrying amounts of cash in banks, receivables, accrued
expenses, and other current liabilities and due from and to related parties approximate their fair
values due to the short-term nature of the transactions. The fair value measurement of current
financial assets and liabilities is classified as Level 3 (significant unobservable inputs).

AFS Investment. The fair value of this financial asset is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the reporting date. The fair value measurement of AFS
investment is classified as Level 1 (quoted in an active market).

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard the Company’s ability
to continue its operations as a going concern and to maximize shareholder value. The Company
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new stock. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

17.

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Policy

On December 31, 2016, the Company changed its measurement basis on its investment properties
from cost model to fair value model. Management believes that such change will result to more
reliable financial information as the investment properties consist of parcels of land.

The Company’s financial statements as at and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
were restated to take up the cumulative effect of change in accounting policy.
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The effect of restatement on each financial statement line item is summarized below:

December 31, 2015

Investment Deferred tax
properties liability Deficit
As previously reported B38,020,000 B- (R2,908,841,606)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy 28,214,000 8,464,200 19,749,800
As restated R66,234,000 R8,464,200 (R2,889,091,806)

December 31, 2014

Investment Deferred tax
properties liability Deficit
As previously reported £38,020,000 B— (R2,878,142,995)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy 28,214,000 8,464,200 19,749,800

As restated £66,234,000 P8,464,200 (R2,858,393,195)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc.

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of Prime
Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company), a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., as at
December 31, 2016 and for the year then ended included in this Form 17-A and have issued our report
thereon dated April 10, 2017. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules as at December 31, 2016 are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. These supplementary schedules include the following:

e Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretations

e Financial Ratios

* Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
e Schedules required by Part Il of SRC Rule 68, as amended

These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Part Il, as
amended, and are not part of the financial statements. This information have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, including comparing such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respect in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

BELINDA B. FERNANDO

Partner
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2016

. Not Not
Ttle Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics v
PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)
; Not Not
PFRS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
PFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting v
Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for &
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and 5
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and v
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- v
based Payment Transactions
PFRS 3 (Revised) | Business Combinations v
Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration in a Business Combination
Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Joint v
Ventures
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts




PFRS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

PFRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

7

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal

v

PERS 6

Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Iimproving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts

Amendment to PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating
Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconciliation of the Total of
the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance




PFRS Title Adopted A d':s:e d Appl\llic;;ble
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities: Applying 7
the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term receivables and v
Payables
Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception v

PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
PAS Title Adopted A d':::e d Apphllizzble
PAS 1 (Revised) | Presentation of Financial Statements v

Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments v
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other #
Comprehensive Income
Amendment to PAS 1: Clarification of the v
Requirements for Comparative Presentation
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

PAS 2 Inventories

PAS7 Statement of Cash Flows v

PAS 8 QggoEurr:(tjigg Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates »

PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Construction Contracts v
PAS 12 Income Taxes v
Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of v
Underlying Assets
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing 7

Equipment




. Not Not
PAS Title Adopted Adopted | Appiicable
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated v
Depreciation
Amendment to PAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment
- Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation v
and Amortization
Amendment to PAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue
PAS 19
. Empl Benefi v
(Revised) mployee Benefits
Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: v
Employee Contributions
Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Market v
Issue
PAS 20 Accounting for Gpvernment Grants and Disclosure of e
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
PAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs
PAS 24 (Revised) | Related Party Disclosures
Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
PAS 27
S i i v
(Amended) eparate Financial Statements
Amendments to PAS 27: Investment Entities v
Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate v
Financial Statements
PAS.28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
(Amended)
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying v
the Consolidation Exception
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies v
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation v

Financial Instruments: Presentation




PAS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

v

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

v

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity Instruments

PAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Amendment to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and
Segment Information for Total Assets and Liabilities

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

PAS 36

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial
Assets

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives




; Not Not
PAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged ltems v
Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and v
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PAS 40 Investment Property v
Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifying the Interrelationship
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property v
as Investment Property or Owner-occupied Property
PAS 41 Agriculture
Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants
Philippine Interpretations
. . Not Not
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
IFRIC 1 e v
Similar Liabilities
IFRIC 2 Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar v
Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a v
Lease
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market
IFRIC 6 : ) : v
- Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
IFRIC 7 N " P ) v
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9: v
Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
IFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, v
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, v

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement




; ; Not Not
n r
Interpretations Title Adopted ndspeed || ApplEbE
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IERIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v
Instruments
ERIC 20 Str|pp|ng Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface v
Mine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC
Not Not
Interpr i i
nterpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro v
S1C-10 Govern.ment ﬁ.\s.s!‘stance - No Specific Relation to v
Operating Activities
SIC-15 Operating Leases ~ Incentives v
SIC-25 Incpme Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity 7
or its Shareholders
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
SIC-27 v
Legal Form of a Lease
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. v
SIC-31 Reve.nue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising "
Services
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

FINANCIAL RATIOS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Below is a schedule showing financial soundness indicators in the years 2016 and 2015.

2016 2015
Current/Liquidity Ratio 0.25 0.40
Current assets R48,027,135 R78,439,864
Current liabilities 193,160,882 195,966,610
Solvency Ratio (0.13) (0.16)
Loss before income tax, depreciation, and
amortization (R25,662,955) (RP30,651,111)
Total liabilities 193,160,882 195,989,085
Debt-to-equity Ratio (2.25) (3.30)
Total liabilities ®193,160,882 £195,989,085
Total equity (85,736,047) (59,455,061)
Asset-to-equity Ratio (1.36) (2.44)
Total assets R116,459,335 144,998,224
Total equity (85,736,047) (59,455,061)
Interest rate coverage Ratio - =
Pretax income before interest (R25,680,115) (R30,662,551)
Interest expense - -
Profitability Ratio - -
Net loss (R26,270,986)  (R30,698,611)
Capital deficiency (85,736,047) (59,455,061)




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMPANY’S
RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2016

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as shown in the
financial statements at beginning of year

Cumulative gain on fair value changes of investment properties

Deferred tax liability at beginning of year

(R2,889,091,806)
(28,214,000)
8,464,200

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as adjusted to
available for dividend declaration at beginning of year
Net loss during the year:
Net loss during the year closed to retained earnings
Gain on change in fair value of investment properties
Add deferred tax liability during the year (presented
through profit or loss)

(26,270,986)
(1,901,000)

570,300

(2,908,841,606)

(27,601,686)

Total retained earnings (deficit) available for dividend
declaration at end of year

(R2,936,443,292)

Reconciliation:

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as shown in the
financial statements at end of year

Cumulative gain on fair value changes of investment properties
at end of year

Add deferred tax liability during the year (presented through
profit or loss)

(2,915,362,792)
(30,115,000)

9,034,500

Total retained earnings (deficit) available for dividend
declaration at end of year

(R2,936,443,292)




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)
SEC SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PAR. 6 PART Il
OF SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Table of Contents

Schedule Description Page

A Financial Assets 1

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related

B Parties, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) ¢
C Indebtedness to Related Parties 3
D Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers 4
E Capital Stock 5

F Conglomerate Map 6
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SECTION 141 OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016

2. SEC ldentification Number 22401

3. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-491-007 : S

_i‘}*-EEFVE,lISUUIE

G Th0 REViLw OF
4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter PRIME MEDIA HOLRINGS,:INC I {EGH ”‘”Tﬁwl-‘-'rrst"“/
e-Bank Corporation)

5. Manila 6.[ ] (SEC UseOnly)

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization

7. 16" Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City 1227
Address of principal office Postal Code

8. _(632) 831-4479
Issuer's telephone number, including area code

9. Not applicable
Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding
and Amount of Debt Outstanding

Preferred stock, PHP 1.00 par value 14,366,260

Common Stock, Php 1.00 par value 700,298,616

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes [X] Nol[ ]

Philippine Stock Exchange
12. Check whether the issuer:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of

The Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes [X] Nol[ ]
(b) Has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [X] No [ ]

13. The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates is 104,563,524 representing
14.93% of the outstanding common shares is Pesos 128,766,034.44 million computed on the basis
of the closing price as of March 31, 2017 of Pesos 1.01 per share.
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

(A) Description of Business
Item 1. Business Development

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (PRIM) was originally incorporated on February 6, 1963 as
Private Development Corporation of the Philippines and then changed to PDCP
Development Bank, Inc. that same year. On June 6, 2000, the Company changed its name
to First e-Bank Corporation and then eventually shifted to its current name on October 20,
2003.

In 2002, Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. assumed the servicing of PRIM's deposit liabilities and
other banking functions. On December 6, 2002, the Board of PRIM approved the
amendment of its articles of incorporation to change to primary purpose from a development
bank to a holding company, which would hold investments in the media industry.

On January 26, 2013, the Board of Directors (BOD) approved the amendment in its articles
of incorporation (AOI) extending the corporate life of PRIM by another 50 years up to
February 6, 2063. The Stockholders of the Company approved and ratified the amendment
in a special stockholders' meeting on February 4, 2013. On February 5, 2013, the Company
filed the amended AOI with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and SEC
approval was obtained last March 4, 2013.

On March 2, 2015, the SEC approved the change of principal office address from 3 San
Antonio Street, Barrio Kapitolyo, Pasig City to 16th Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de
Roxas, Makati City.

In view of the very minimal operations, the Company gradually retired all its employees by
2010 and engaged consultants/service providers to service its requirements.

Item 2. Properties

Practically all the properties of the Company while it was still a bank consisting of bank
premises (land, buildings and leasehold rights) and real estate acquired through dacion and
foreclosure were conveyed to BDO/PDIC. There are certain properties which remains as
investment properties which are primarily to finance the operating expenses of the Company.
Please refer to Note 7 of the 2016 Audited Financial Statements (AFS).

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Considering the Company's previous operation, the Company was named defendant in
various legal actions. One of the cases which may affect the Company is the case of Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas vs. Prime Media Holdings, Inc., docketed Civil Case No. 13130993 and
pending before Branch 25, Regional Trial Court, City of Manila. The summary of the case is
provided below.

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) filed an action for Collection of a Sum of Money in the
amount of £42,487,770.23 representing alleged rental arrears under the (i) Contract of
Lease with Option to Purchase (“Contract”) between the BSP and PDCP Development Bank
(PDCP Bank, which changes its name to First E-Bank Corporation or First E-Bank, now,
Prime Medial Holdings, Inc. or PMHI) dated 14 January 2001; (ii) Agreement to Extend the
Buyback Period of the Repurchased Properties (“Agreement of 2001") dated 30 July 2001

3



between the BSP and First E-Bank; and (iii) Renewal of Contract of Lease with Option to
Purchase (“Agreement of 2002"), notarized on 8 January 2002.

In its Answer, PMHI interposed a defense that the Contracts on which the Complaint is
based, are all void and inexistent violative of the General Banking Act, principle of mutuality
of contracts as well as Articles 19, 20 and 21 of the Civil Code, and principle on unjust
enrichment under Article 22 of the same Code. As counterclaim, PMHI is claiming the
amount of One Hundred Forty Five Million Pesos (®145,000,000.00) which was unilaterally
forfeited by BSP.

The parties have submitted their formal offer of evidence.
Please see Note 14 of the attached 2016 AFS.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting held last 25 October 2016, the following were
submitted for approval of the shareholders:

e Call to order

2, Certification of Quorum

3. Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting

4, Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements

5. Ratification of Management's Act

6. Election of Directors

7. Appointment of External Auditor

8. Other matters

e Re-affirmation of the previous resolution of the shareholders to convert the

preferred shares into common shares at the ratio of 25 preferred shares to 1
common share.

9. Adjourment

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
(1) Market information
The total number of outstanding shares of record as of December 31, 2016 is
700,298,616 of which 663,713,458 is actively being traded in the Philippine Stock

Exchange. The high and low sales prices in pesos for each quarter within the last
three fiscal years 2014 to 2016 are given below:

Year Quarter High Low
2014 18t 2.15 1.40
2vd 2.00 1.66
3 1.99 1.67
4t 1.70 1.25
2015 1= 1.62 1.30
2 1.68 1.30
3d 1.40 1.08
g 1.67 1.10
2016 i b 1.47 0.90




Year Quarter High Low
ond 1.84 1.25
2l 1.35 1.16
4th 1.54 1.13

(2) Holders of Securities
Common Shareholders
The number of common shareholders on record as of December 31, 2016 is

1,608.The list of the top twenty common shareholders as of December 31, 2016
is provided below:

Name of Stockholders No. of shares %age of
ownership

1 PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) 670,718,882 95.78

2 First Producers Holdings, Corp. 6,175,789 0.88
FAO Ray Burton Dev't Corporation

3 First Producers Holdings, Corp. 4,903,852 0.70
FAO Producers Properties, Inc.

4 Ray Burton Development 3,213,203 0.46
Corporation

5 Producers Properties, Inc. 3,013,701 0.43

6 Mercantile Investment Company, 1,585,989 0.23
Inc.

7 Albert Del Rosario ITF Anthony 1,289,279 0.18
Salim

8 PCD Nominee Corporation 1,063,335 0.15
(Foreign)

9 Ernesto B. Lim 880,000 0.13

10 | Lucio W. Yan &/or Clara Yan 600,000 0.09

11 | Joel B. Vargas 534,876 0.08

12 | Merlene So &/or So Peng Kee 239,000 0.03

13 | Maria T. Uy 211,200 0.03

14 | Jose Yu Go, Jr. 210,000 0.03

15 | Jovy Lim Go 150,000 0.02

16 | Qeu Lu Kiong 150,000 0.02

17 | Rufino H. Abad 142,011 0.02

18 | Luciano H. Tan 139,600 0.02

19 | Leonardo Navalta 132,294 0.02

20 | Lamberto C. Dizon &/or Erlinda V. 127,860 0.02
Dizon




Preferred Shareholders

The number of preferred shareholders of record as of December 31, 2016 was 267.
Preferred shares outstanding as of December 31, 2016 were 14,366,260. The top
twenty shareholders are as follows:

Name of Stockholders No. of | %age of
shares | ownership

1 Florentino L. Martinez 907,340 6.32%
2 Carlos Torres 800,000 5.57%
3 MDI Employees Retirement Plan 610,450 4.25%
4 Metrolab Employees Retirement Plan 545,040 3.79%
5 Helena Llereza 529,810 3.69%
6 HPPI Employees Retirement Plan 500,000 1.03%
7 E. Chua Chiaco Sec., Inc. 449,640 3.13%
8 Citi Securities Inc. 403,000 2.81%
9 Wealth Securities, Inc. 402,000 2.80%
10 | Virginia U. Ng 344,470 2.40%
11 | PNB Securities Inc. 300,280 2.09%
12 | Tato A. Johan 300,000 2.09%

13 | BDO Trust Banking Group
Fao Miriam College Foundation Inc.

Employees 280,000 1.95%
14 | Antonio R. Samson 250,000 1.74%
156 | Segundo Seangio 244,000 1.70%
16 | Diversified Sec., Inc. 218,080 1.52%
17 | Antonio Alipio 218,000 1.52%
18 | Teresita Cometa 210,000 1.46%
19 | Eastern Securities Devt. Corp. 196,340 1.37%
20 | Virginia U. Ng 183,130 1.27%

(3) Dividends
There were no dividends declared.
(4) Recent Sales of Unregistered or exempt Securities

On April 6, 2013, the BOD approved the conversion of advances from Neo Oracle
Holdings, Inc. (NOHI) and Metro Tagaytay Land Co. Inc. (MTLCI) amounting to
£119.7 million and P480.8 million, respectively, into 47,861,410 common shares and
192,323,360 common shares, respectively, at stipulated conversion price of £2.50
per common share.

On the same date, the BOD entered into a subscription agreement with NOHI and
MTLCI for 179.0 million or 71.6 million common shares with an issue price of £2.50
per share. The Company received the minimum subscription price amounting to
£70.0 million which was used by the Company to pay its loan with BDO. During May
and June 2014, NOHI and MTLCI fully paid their subscriptions with the payment of
the 109 million balance.



As of December 31, 2014, the Company issued 311,784,770 shares to NOHI and
MTLCI as a result of the conversion of advances and subscription agreement. The
listing of the said shares was approved by the PSE on December 15, 2014.

Item 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The Company has not been actively operating since its primary purpose was changed from a
development bank to a holding company in December 2002 other than the continuing
activities described in Part | A (1). There are no known trends, events or material
commitments that are expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the
financial condition or on income from continuing operations. The Company also signed
subscription agreements with its major stockholders for a total proceeds of 179 million, of
which P70 million was received in April 2013 and the balance of #109 million was collected in
May and June 2014. This further bring down the capital deficit and will be the major source
of funding for the expenses related to the transfer of the remaining assets to PDIC and BSP.
Aside from the transfer of assets to PDIC and BSP, the Company continues to pursue the
clean-up of its books and the settlement of its remaining obligations to pave the way for
possible additional capital infusion from third party investors.

The Company is still exploring for a new business. lts current activities comprise mainly of
transferring asset related to its development bank operation to BDO & PDIC. Thus, the
company has continued to incur losses resulting to a capital deficiency of #87.1 million and
P59.5 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Stockholders, however,
have continued to provide the necessary financial support to sustain company operations.
The stockholders converted their preferred stock of £48.6 million into common stock in 2016
and converted their advances of P600.5 million to additional capital in 2014 and infused
capital aggregate £119.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce capital deficiency.

The Company is considering the implementation of a Quasi reorganization to reduce capital
deficiency.

Explanations for the material changes in the Company’s accounts between 2016 and
2015 are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by £28.54 Million or equivalent to 19.68% from
£145.00 Million in 2015 to P116.46 Million in 2016. The significant changes were mainly due
to the following:

e Cash decreased significantly from ®73.23 million as of December 31, 2015 to
£2.70 million as of December 31, 2016, a decrease of P70.53 million or equivalent to
96.31% pertains mainly to the payment of administrative expenses and advances made
to RYM Business Management Corporation. The advances were subsequently collected
in 2017.

e Due from Parent Company increased significantly by 40.00 million or equivalent to
100.00% pertains to the advances made to RYM Business Management Corporation.

e The company incurred a net loss of £26.27 million in 2016 which resulted to decrease in
the total stockholder’s equity.



Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of £26.27 million in 2016, ®4.32 million or equivalent
to 14.42% lower as compared to 2015 reported net loss of £30.76 million. The significant
changes were mainly due to the following:

e Outside services decreased from P2.09million in 2015 to ©1.09 million in 2016,
£1.00 million or equivalent to 47.59% decrease primarily due to the payment of appraisal
fee for the appraisal on the properties of the Company in 2015.

e Taxes and licenses decreased from ©1.57 million in 2015 to P0.65 million in 2016,
58.19% in due to payment of real property tax.

e Rent decreased by P0.97 million or equivalent to 78.12% due to termination of rental
contract for office space used in 2015.

e Other expenses decreased by P1.20 million mainly due to last year’s loss on litigation on
the “China Banking Corporation vs. Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank
(now Prime Media Holdings, Inc.)”, under Civil Case No. 95-72847, RTC Manila, Branch
17.

Explanations for the material changes in the Company’s accounts between 2015 and
2014 are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P36.89 Million or equivalent to 24.00% from
£181.89 Million in 2014 to 145.00 Million in 2015. The significant changes were mainly due
to the following:

e Cash decreased significantly from ®110.05 million as of December 31, 2014 to P73.23
million as of December 31, 2015, a decrease of 36.82 million or equivalent to 33.46%
pertains mainly to payment of liabilities and administrative expenses.

e Receivables decreased from P4.65 million as of December 31, 2014 to P4.38 million as
of December 31, 2015, a decrease of P0.27 million or equivalent to 5.81% mainly due to
the collection of the subleased property rent.

e The company incurred a net loss of £30.70 million in 2015 which resulted to decrease in
the total stockholder’s equity by £30.60 million.

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of #30.70 million in 2015, ©29.48 million or equivalent
to 2,483.85% higher as compared to 2014 reported net loss of P1.27 million. The significant
changes were mainly due to the following:

e The company entered into management agreement with RYM Business Management
Corporation for a Management services amounting to £23.1 million.

e Professional fee increased from P0.46 million to £2.51 million in 2015 or equivalent to
451.99% due to monthly legal fees paid for the cases handled.

e Qutside services increased from P1.61 million in 2014 to £2.09 million in 2015, P0.47
million or equivalent to 29.38% decrease primarily due to payment of appraisal fee for the
appraisal on the properties of the Company amounting to £1.15 million.

e Taxes and licenses increased from ©1.36 million in 2014 to ®1.57 million in 2015,
14.86% in due to payment of real property tax.



e Rent increased by P0.62 million or équivalent to 98.52% due to payment of office rental,
storage and warehouse charges.

e Other expenses increased by P1.30 million mainly due to loss on litigation on the “China
Banking Corporation vs. Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank (now Prime
Media Holdings, Inc.)’, under Civil Case No. 95-72847, RTC Manila, Branch 17.

Explanations for the material changes in the Company’s accounts between 2014 and
2013 are given below:

Statement of Financial Position

Total assets of the Company stood at #153.67 million which is 106.8 million or 228% higher
than the previous year. The significant changes were mainly due to the following:

e Cash increased significantly from #3.27 milion as of December 31, 2013 to
£110.05 million as of December 31, 2014 mainly due to the receipt of 109 million
representing full payment of the stock subscription of two major stockholders, NOHI and
MTLCI.

e Loans and receivables increased by 6% mainly due to the accrual of the subleased
property rent for the month of November and December 2014.

e Other current assets decreased by 17% as prepaid rent representing rent for the year
2014 on a subleased property was converted into expense.

Total liabilities as of December 31, 2014 which mainly pertains to accruals for taxes and
registration fees and payables to BDO, PDIC and PDIC almost remained constant from the
£203.15 million for the year-end 2013 level to P202.27 million. Capital deficiency as of the
current year end further reduced to P48.6 million from 156.31 million as of December 31,
2013 principally due to the conversion of debts to related parties into equity and the full
payment of new share subscriptions. '

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of #1.27 million in 2014, as compared to 2013 that
reported a net income of 8.4 million. The net loss mainly due to the 1.2 million payments
of documentary stamp tax in relation to the issuance of shares for the conversion of
advances to equity in April 2014, the 0.8 million payment of penalty to PSE for failure to
comply submission of 2011 disclosures and the #0.87 million payment of listing fees
covering 311, 784,711 shares on December 2014 This was partly offset by the rental
income collected from the leased properties, collection of an account that was previously
written off and proceeds from a sale of real property.

Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

Comparative figures of the key performance indicators (KPI) for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015:

2016 2015
Net Income (P25,680,115) (P30,662,551)
Current assets 8,027,135 78,439,864



2016 2015

Total assets 116,459,335 144,998,224
Current liabilities 193,160,882 204,453,285
Total liabilities 202,195,382 204,453,285
Stockholders’ Equity (85,736,047) (59,455,061)
No. of common shares outstanding 700,298,616 698,930,906
2015 2014

Current ratio ! 0.04 0.40
Book value per share 2 (0.12) (0.09)
Debt ratio * (2.25) (3.30)
Profit per share * (0.04) (0.04)
Return on assets ° (0.23) (0.21)
Note:

1. Current assets / current liabilities

2. Stockholder's Equity / Total outstanding number of shares

3. Total Liabilities / Stockholder’s Equity

4. Net Income ( Loss ) / Total outstanding number of shares

5. Netincome / average total assets

Item 7. Financial Statements

The 2016 Audited Financial Statements and schedules are filed as part of
Form 17-A.

Item 8. Information on Independent Accountant and other Related Matters

External Audit Fees and Services

Year Ended December 31
2016 2015

Audit Fees £330,000 £250,000

Audit Fees. Represents professional fees of the external auditor for the audit services
rendered on Company’s Annual Financial Statements for the year 2016 and 2015.

Audit services provided to the Company by external auditor have been pre-approved by the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the magnitude and nature of these
services to ensure that they are compatible with maintaining the independence of the
external auditor.

Changes in and disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and financial
Disclosure

There was no event in the past years where the external auditor and the Registrant had any
disagreements with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.
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PART lll - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer

Directors

The following are the names, ages, citizenship and periods of service of the past and the

incumbent directors/independent directors of the Company:

Name

Period during which
individual has served as such

Manolito A. Manalo

May 28 2013 to present

Juan Jose L. Chua

May 28 2013 to September
2013

Bernadeth A. Lim

May 28 2013 to present

Juan Victor S. Valdez

May 28 2013 to present

Monica Isabelle I. Villanueva

April 6 2013 to present

Diane Madelyn C. Ching

October 2013 to present

Johnny Y. Aruego Jr.
(independent director)

May 28 2013 to present

Edgardo E. Tumangan
(independent director)

Age Citizenship
47 Filipino
51 Filipino
33 Filipino
44 Filipino
34 Filipino
34 Filipino
46 Filipino
81 Filipino

May 28 2013 to present

Officers

The following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and periods of service of the past

and incumbent officers and advisors of the Company:

Period during which
Name Age Position Citizenship | individual has served
as such

Manolito Manalo 47 | President & CEO Filipino May 2013 to present
Bernadeth A. Lim 33 | Vice President Filipino May 2013 to present
Juan Victor Valdez 44 | Vice President Filipino May 2013 to present
Monica fsabelle . | 34 gggfg{::f Filipino | May 2013 to present
Diane Madelyn C. Asst. Corporate
Ching ’ &t Secretaryp Filipino May 2014 to present
Rolando S. Santos 65 | Treasurer Filipino May 2013 to present
Christopher Sam S. 34 Co-Corporate Filipino December 2014 to
Salvador Information Officer present

Business Experience and Other Directorships

Directors

The business experience of each of the past and incumbent directors of the Company for the
last five (5) years is as follows.

Directors

Manolito A. Manalo was elected as President and Director in May 2013. He is the co-




founder and managing partner of Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is a Director and
President of Panalpina World Transport (Phils.), Inc. He also sits as Director in Kajima
Philippines Inc. He began his law practice as an associate in Leovillo C. Agustin Law Offices
from 1995 to 1996 and Britanico Consunji and Sarmiento from 1996 to 1997. He later
headed the Legal Division of Air Philippines from 1997 to 1999.

Bernadeth A. Lim was elected as Vice President and Director in May 2013. She is a junior
partner of Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. She is a Director and Corporate Secretary of
Kajima Philippines Incorporated, Ripple Mobile Technology Solutions Inc., Anawhan Realty
Inc. and Bryaric Holdings Corp. She also sits a Director in Veripay Mobile Systems Inc.

Juan Victor S. Valdez was elected as Director in May 2013. He is a junior partner of
Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is a director, Vice—President for Legal Affairs and
Corporate Secretary of PATTS College of Aeronautics, one of the country’s leading
aeronautic schools. He also sits as director in Segundo Travel & Tours Inc., Hafti Tours Inc.,
and Kajima Philippines Incorporated.

Monica Isabelle I. Villanueva was elected as Corporate Secretary and Director in April
2013. She is a senior associate in Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. She is also a Director in
Autocardinal Inc., Building Maintenance Unit Inc., Manorfort Capital Inc. and Ripplewood
Property Holdings Inc.

Diane Madelyn C. Ching was elected as Director in October 2013. She currently serves as
Corporate Secretary of AG Finance Inc. and Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc.
(formerly Bankard Inc.) as well as General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary of
Marcventures Holdings Inc. and its subsidiary, Marcventures Mining and Development Corp.
She provides legal consultancy services to PLDT Global (Philippines) Corp. Atty. Ching was
previously an associate of Ocampo & Manalo Law Firm from March 2010 to June 2013

Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. was elected as an Independent Director in May 2013. He is a partner
in Aruego Bite and Associates. He is a director of Excel Unified Land Resources
Corporation. He is the Corporate Secretary and Legal Counsel for Agility, Inc. and A. V.
Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Insurance Broker, Inc. He is a Legal Consultant of Loranzana Food
Corporation, National Steel Corporation and Margarita Land and Management Co., Inc. He is
the assistant rehabilitation receiver for Pacific Activated Carbon, Inc., Pet Plans, Inc.,
Bacnotan Steel Industries, Inc. and All Asia Capital and Trust Corporation. He is an
assistant liquidator of East Asia Capital Corporation, Reynolds Philippines Corporation.

Edgardo E. Tumangan was elected as an Independent Director in May 2013. He is a
partner in Tumangan & Partners Law Offices and a legal counsel in San Miguel Corporation.
He is a director in Macet, Inc., Lenspro Corporation and CEIl Laboratories, Inc. He is the
President of the Capitol Bar Association and the Founding Chairman of the Philippine
Insurance Law Association. He is the Chairman of the Rotary Leadership Institute and the
President of the U.P. Alumni Association in the Nueva Ecija Chapter.

Other Officers
The business experience of each of the incumbent officers of the Company for the last five
(5) years is as follows:

Rolando S. Santos was elected as Treasurer in October 2013. He serves as Vice President
and Treasurer of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc. and as Treasurer of
Marcventures Holdings Inc. and Marcventures Mining and Development Corp. He was
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previously the Branch Head/ Cluster Head for Makati Branches of Equitable PCI Bank which
was eventually acquired by BDO from 2001 to 2013.

Christopher Sam S. Salvador was re-elected as Co-Corporate Information Officer in
December 2014. He is an associate of Ocampo & Manalo law firm. He is a director and the
Treasurer of Pureholdings, Inc., Corporate Secretary of Timebound Trading Inc., and
Associate Corporate Secretary for Island Tranvoyager, Inc. and Bacuit Airholdings, Inc.

Item 10. Executive Compensation

The aggregate compensation paid in 2013 and 2014 and estimated to be paid in 2015, to the
officers of the Company is set out below:

Names Position Year Salary Bonus | Others

Manolito A. | Chairman &

Manalo President

Bernadeth A. Lim | Vice President

Juan Victor Valdez | Vice President

Rolando S. Santos | Treasurer

Monica lIsabelle I. | Corporate

Villanueva Secretary

Aggregate for

above named 2013 0 0 0

officers 2014 0 0 0
2015 0 0 22,222
2016(est.) 66,667

All Directors and 2013 0 0 0

Officers as a 2014 0 0 0

group unnamed 2015 0 0 27,778
2016(est.) 155,556

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Security Ownership of Record and Beneficial Owners of at least 5% of the Company's
Securities as of 31 December 2016:

Name and address o~
Type of of record owner = ; WEmeI Bengflmall No. of Shares | Percent
C| ; : Citizenship Owner & Relationship
ass and relationship o B Clumes Held of class
with Issuer
Common | PCD Nominee RYM Business
Shares Filipino Management Corp./ 463,555,085 | 66.19%
Client
gﬁ:rg‘s"” PCD Nominge Filipino Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. | 97,178,901 | 14.00%
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On ‘December 18, 2015, the Company disclosed that it received information from RYM
Business Management Corp. that the latter acquired through foreclosure sale 93,685,410
and 218,099,360 common shares owned by NOHI and MTLCI, respectively, resulting to
87.38% ownership in the Company.

Other than the abovementioned transaction, the Company has no knowledge of any person
who, as of December 31, 2015, was directly or indirectly the beneficial owner of, or who has
voting power or investment power (pursuant to a voting trust or other similar agreement) with
respect to, shares comprising more than five percent (5%) of the Company’s outstanding
common shares of stock.

Security Ownership of Management as of December 31, 2016

Amount and nature
Type of Class Nams snd.Addross of of Beneficial Citizenship FiaGEnt
Owner . of class
ownership
Common Manolito Manalo 1 Filipino 0.0%
Common Monica I. Villanueva 1 Filipino 0.0%
Common Bernadeth A. Lim 1 Filipino 0.0%
Common Diane Madelyn Ching 1 Filipino 0.0%
Common Manalo Juan Victor S. 1 Filipino
0.0%
Valdez
Common Johnny Y. Aruego Jr. 1 Filipino 0.0%
Common Edgardo E. Tumangan 1 Filipino 0.0%
Aggregate for above 7
named officers and
directors

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any voting trust agreements or any other similar agreements
which may result in a change in control of the Company. As reported to the SEC and PSE,
on December 18, 2015, RYM Business Management Corp. acquired through foreclosure
sale 93,685,410 and 218,099,360 common shares owned by NOHI and MTLCI, respectively,
resulting to 87.38% ownership in the Company.

Item 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

As of December 31, 2016, Bright Kindle Resources Corporation has an outstanding balance
of 898,953 which represents a non-interest bearing unsecured rent receivable to be settled
on demand. Also, as of December 31, 2015, the Company has a liability to Marcventures
Mining and Development Corporation amounting to 22,475 which represents a non-interest

bearing unsecured payable to be settled on demand. Please refer to Note 15 of the attached
2015 AFS.

Part IV — Exhibits and Schedules
Item 13. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
(a) Exhibits

See accompanying Index to Exhibits.
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The following exhibits are filed as a separate section of this report

(b) Reports on SEC Form 17-C

ltems reported under SEC Form 17-C during the last six months covered by this report:

Date of Report

Event Reported

(1)

April 14, 2016

Results of Board Meeting last April 13, 2016
Postponement of Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

(2)

June 01, 2016

Acquisition of additional shares by current shareholder

This report pertains to the 93,685,410 shares of Neo Oracle Holdings Inc.
and 218,009,360 shares of Metro Tagaytay Land Company Inc. in Prime
Media Holdings Inc. that were transferred to RYM Business Management
Corp. (RYM) through a special block sale on 31 May 2016 at the price of PhP
0.7957 and PhP 0.2616 per share, respectively, to implement the foreclosure
sales made in December 2015.

(3

June 06, 2016

Change in the Number of Issued and Qutstanding Shares

This is in relation to the conversion of preferred shares into common shares
previously approved by the Board and and duly disclosed to the Exchange,
the Company issued 1,289,279 additional shares on May 30, 2016 arising
from the conversion of 32,231,970 preferred shares at the conversion rate of
25 preferred shares to 1 common share.

(4)

October 10, 2016

Change in the Number of Issued and Outstanding Shares.
This is in relation to the conversion of preferred shares into common shares
previously approved by the Board last April 13, 2016 and duly disclosed to
the Exchange, the Company issued 78,431 additional shares on September
22 2016 arising from the conversion of 1,060,770 preferred shares at the
conversion rate of 25 preferred shares to 1 common share.

(5

October 25, 2016

Results of Organizational meeting of BOD and Annual Stockholders’ Meeting

(6)

November 14,
2016

Contact Update

Letter to all stockholders of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. to update their
information by providing their address, telephone number, mobile number,
email address and Tax Identification Number (TIN) to our stock and transfer
agent, Securities Transfer Services Inc.

(7) | December 05, Applications for the conversion of preferred shares into common shares.
2016
(8) | December 12, Reply to Exchange's Query

2016

Reply to letter dated October 18, 2016 inquiring on the Company's business
plans to bring its stockholders’ equity from negative to positive. J
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